


John T. Jakes an illustrious ¢itizen who was instrumental in the growth of Wyoming was born
November 28, 1833 near Pearson’s Gorner, Kent Gounty. He was of French Hugeunot descent, the
name originally being Jacques.

On June 1, 18586, the Delaware Railroad and Adams Express Gompany opened their respec-
tive offices for business and appointed John T. JaKes their agent. At the time of Mr. Jakes’ taking
possession of those offices there were two dwelling-houses which were occupisd by the owner of
the grist mill located on the opposite side of the stream (Isaac's Branch) in East Dover Hundred,
and by his miller. In the same year Wm. P. Lyndall built a storehouse and entered in the mercantile
business, but in the year following he sold out to John T. Jakes.

Mr. Jakes was one of the pioneers of the new town, and assisted greatly in building it up. He
was the leading man in building and having the first Methodist Episcopal Ghurch Society organ-
ized there. He was also greatly instrumental in securing the establishment of a post-office and
became its first postmaster, He was appointed January 6, 1866, and held the office continuously
until August 10, 1885, aterm of nineteen and a halfyears. Mr. Jakes was also one of the founders of
the First National Bank of Dover, and was chosen a member of the first board ef directors in March,
1866.

By 1868, the village of Wyoming which had been partially laid out by Dr. Isaac Jump of Dover
had already grown into a respectably sized village, located three miles southwest of Dover, one
mile west of Gamden, and bisected by the Delaware railroad. The village was known by the name of
“West Gamden” and sometimes as “Gamden Station™ from its inception down to the year 1865, on
account of its location.

In 1865, The Reverend John J. Pierce of Wyoming Valley, Pennsylvania came to “West
Gamden” and laid the town out into building lets. In that year the citizens of “West Gamden”
decided to change the name of their village to Wyoming out of deference to the Reverend Mr.
Pierce. On March 20, 1888, Wyoming was first incorporated as atown, it was reincorporated in 1888,

The center ofthe town lay at the intersection of Front Street with the railroad near the original
location ofthe freight offices. On the West side of this intersection was Jakes’ Store which was for
many years the leading mercantile establishment and also the location of the post office.

According to Beer's Atlas printed in 1868, only twelve years after the founding ofthe town, the
following streets had already been laid out: Wyoming Avenue (Known as Railroad Avenue today),
Layton Avenue, Front Street, Second Street, Third Street, Lake Drive, Water Street, and Mechanic
Street.

The main road led from Wyoming into Gamden along Front Street to its intersection with the
present Gaesar Rodney Avenue, then along Gaesar Rodney to its intersection with the present
Camden-Wyoming Avenue, at which intersection thers was a black settlement called Jarrelltown,
and then along the present road into Gamden. That section of Gamden-Wyoming Avenue which
lies between Gaesar Rodney Avenue and the Railroad was in early times, a path leading through
orchards and a marsh, called by the more romantically inclined “Lover's Lane”. The present back
road to Dover ran along the railroad only so far as Hamilton's Store, then Known as Garton's
crossing. It was extended into Dover between 1896 and 1900.

By 1880, Wyoming, the first station below Dover on the railroad, was a nicely laid out town of
600 inhabitants, including “A handsome depot, two churches, a good hotel, the Wyoming Institute,
several stores, etc. in the heart of a rich fruit and vegetable country”. The town was well on its way.

By 1913, Wyoming was a village with large homes, businesses and farm produce brokers,
centered around the railroad. The Wyoming Directory of 1813 not only listed persons’ telephone
numbers (if they had one), but also the number ofacres and children one possessed, the address,
and whether one were a tenant, worked on shares or were retired.

By 1938, the Federal Writers’ Project compiled their book Delaware, A Guide to the First
State, in which the following is excerpted. “From Gamden, on State 10, is Wyoming (911 pop.), a

50






WYOMING'S BUSINESSES AND STORES

Although the Grist Mill had been in operation since 1734, the start of otherbusiness activities
is believed to have been June 1, 1858 when Jakes was appointed agent for both the Delaware
Railroad and Adams Express Go.

The center ofthe town lay at the intersection of Front Street with the railroad near the original
location of the freight offices. On the West side ofthis intersection was Jakes’ Store, which was for
many years the leading mercantile establishment.

To dry and process some of the fruit produced on the farms near town, James Marsh and
Jacob G. Brown started a factory in 1875 on the northeast corner of Third St. and Railroad Avenue.
Through subsequent mergers, combinations, sales, and removals, the Libby, McHNeil and Libby
plant in Wyoming grew out of the small Marsh and Brown firm.

By 1888 there were three general stores, one drug store, one milliner, one shoe shop, one
harness maker, one nurseryman and two physicians. Of these, the T.R. Brown Lumber Co. was
founded by John Hunn in 1876 and the Jenkins Goal and Lurber Go. and the Jenkins Wholesale
Grocery Gompany were both founded soon after. Willis Jenkins was the propristor of Jenkins
Wholesale Grocery Store in which Delaware Theatrical Supply and Equipment is now located.

By 1886, the following statement appeared in the Delaware State News, “Wyoming lies about
three miles southwest of Dover, and today has several large canneries, a cold storage plant, lumber
yard, some good produce houses, and some up-to-date prosperous stores. It is also a banking

, town.

WYOMING HISTORIC HOUSES

Wyoming has many varied styles of Victorian architecture since the founding of the town
occurred at the height of Queen Victoria’s popularity. Ornate large homes of physicians, fruit
brokers, businessmen and farmers were intersperced with the modest yet attractive homes ofthe
laborers of the period. For exampls, an early early example of row houses can be seen on
GCamden-Wyoming Ave. at Layton Avenue. In fact, there are so many interesting homes and
buildings that only a few can be selected.

Bethel was a home built on Front Street nextto the railroad in 18385 by John Lindale, owner of
the Wyoming Mill. Mr. Lindale built this Victorian house in a formal town-house style for his wife,
Margaret Lyndall, and her three children from a previous marriage. The Round Table Club of
Wyoming-Camden was later founded by this same Margaret Lyndall-Lindale as the ladies sat
around a round marble table in the parlour of her house. The house had the first indoor bathroom
in Wyoming. It also had speaking tubes throughout the nine bedroom house, as well as one tube
which ran to the mill before the advent of the telephone.

John Lindale's granddaughter Virginia Lyndall served on the Wyoming Town Goungcil for many
years as had he, and she ran for Governor on the American Party ticket in the 1960's,

Many large homes were built adjacent to the railroad to get a better view of the incoming trains
and passengers, The social activities were generated around this center of town.

The old mill house at the Mill Pond was built in the last century to house the miller and his
family. It was never lived in by the owners.

The former store on Railroad Avenue and Second Street was once a dance hall. In 1917, the
Holdens bought the building and operated a combination grocery store/butcher shop and ice
cream parlor beginning in 1918. The store featured gas lights and deliveries made in a Model T car.
Breyers Ice Gream was shipped to Wyomning by train in dry ice and was picked up by the Holdens at
thh old freight station. The ice sold in the store came from the old ice house off Southern
Boulevard.
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College Professor Sam Johnson's large Victorian house on Railroad Ave. was built by Mr.
Charles Wetzel, a farmer and the first bank president of the First National Bank of Wyoming.

The site of Wyoming Hardware Co. had been a basket factory before Robert Marker converted
the factory into a hardware store in 1815, The official sea level measurement set by the U.S.
Government is embedded in the sidewalk of the store.

The T.E. Townsend, Jr. house on Southern Blvd. has a shed behind the house which was moved
from the railroad station area. The shed had been used to store the hand-pump track repair cart.
Here one can also see the original “his and her” railroad comfort stations, also moved from the

railroad property.

Former Governor John Hunn, Jr.'s home is located on the corner of Gamden-Wyorning Ave.
and Railroad Ave. He served as Governor from 1801 to 1804. His wife was Sally Cowgill Emerson.

The Wyoming Town Hall was used as a civic meeting place and Kindergarten afterits use asa
fire station. It housed a hand pump for fire fighting. Town Meetings are now held there the first
Monday of every month.

The Wyoming Hotel, which was in operation by 1888, still stands at its original location on the
Southeast corner of Railroad Avenue and Second Street.

There is some doubt as to which is the oldest house now standing in Wyoming. Some believe
that Jakes’ Store, later known as Sapp’s Store, and now converted into a dwelling house on the
Southeast corner of the interssction of Front Street and Railroad Avenue is the oldest. Others
believe that the house on the Downham farm at the end of Pine Street is the oldest.

WYOMING'S CHURCHES

No history of Wyoming would be complete without some mention ofits Churches. During the
summer of 1883, John T. Jakes started a subscription to raise money to erect a temporary building
for a Sunday School. It was soon decided to build a Church instead and in the same year a small
plank Church was located on the East side of Mechanic Street, built on his property on the lake.
The building was plain, the walls made of plank set upon end. The dedication service was held on
November 12, 1885. In just three years, the membership grew to almost 100. The existing
sanctuary was built in 1882 with a parsonage to follow in 1885. When the present structure was
built, the old plank church was abandoned.In 1912 the present church was remodeled and moved
from the center of the lot where it previously stood to the corner of the lot where it now stands.

After the War of 1861-1868 a considerable group of Pennsylvanians settled in the area of
Wyoming. Many of these were members of the Dutch or German Reformed Church. Ministers
were sent to these families from 1869 until 1874 St, John's Reformed Church was dedicated near
the corner of Broad Street and Layton Avenue. The building was sold in 1922, moved onto
Camden-Wyoming Avenue, and converted into a double-dwelling house.

Baptist Services were held intermittently in the Chapel of Wyoming Gollege from 1888 until
the erection of a Baptist Ghurch in Gamdsen in 1891. Episcopal Services were held for a short time
in Wyoming in 1890.In 1913, St Paul's Church was started in a building on the Southwest corner of
Mechanic and Walnut Streets, but services were soon discontinued and the structure is now used

as a dwelling house.

In 1984, there are two churches in Wyoming. One, the Reorganized Ghurch of Jesus Christ of
Latter Dgy Saints, meets in the small building which was formerly owned by the Round Table Glub
of Wyoming-Camden. This building is located at 11 West Gamden-Wyoming Avenue.
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In 1869 commissioners
new act of incorporation
years, respectively,—

John Woodale ... ... .......1869
Edward Loid . e e S 100
Mutthioe Jernen, . ... .. 186y
Matthias Jerman ... . ... ... 1870
William Slay. ... ... .. ...1871
Edward Lord.
Willinm K. Fvans...
John Woodale ... .. ...
Matthiae Jermaui . .
Dr. George G. Harnion | .
William J; Caulk.. ..., e 1875
Steplicn Dustles .. .
Willinn L. Carter...... ....... .

Under the act of 1887
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were elected under the
for three, two and one

Dr. G. G. Haruon., ... .coeee.
Churles G. Temnple
Charles G. Temple.. ..
Diniel L. McBride
Jiumes W, Catts, ..
Stephen DPostles

George anght ... .. . ... .1881
W. Ellison .. 1882
Stephen Postles... . JIRES
C. A. Jacksou

Thomns W. lairgiove.. ... 1885
C. W, Lord, ... ]

William Ellison

five commissioners were

fixed for the town, and E. O. Raymond and I. H.
Hinsley were elected for three years, W. R. Postles
and D. L. McBride for two years, and E. A. Shilling
for one year.

On ‘ Brecknock” is located “ Hanson’s grit-mill,”
which was deeded by James Clayton and wife to
Thomas Hanson and Joshua Gregg, millers, January
31,1761, for the purpose of building thereon a grist-
mill.  June 12, 1766, Gregg deeded his title in the
same to Thomas Hanson, in whose possession it con-
tinued until his death, which occurred in 1783. In
hi will, proven June 3, 17 3, he devised to hi- son-
in-law, Samuel Howell, his m unsion, plantation, mill,
etc. and the useof tw hundred acres purchased of
Joseph Rogers, during his natural life. The mill
property is still in the possession of his de=cendants,
the Howells.

Upon this tract is located, on the southeust ‘ide of
the publi¢ roud from Camden to Dover and lying up-
on lswue’s Branch. * The Camden nion Camp-
gronud for the Methodist Episcopul Churches of
Delaware and Philadelphia,” inearporated by act of
the General Assembly, February 3, 1859, and re-in-
corporated TFebruary 19, 1879. Thi camp-meeting
ground copsists of one of the most beautiful groves
of forest trees on the Peninsula, and possesses numer-
ou prings of purest water of unfiiling low. Here
the people from differen parts of the State and from
Marylaud assemble together for ten days in the
hottest weather of summer, living in board tents
and receiving their friends from abroad. On Sun-
days, from the influx of the surrounding country and
of striangers from sbroad, the numbers on the ground
often reach ten thousand persons.

““Dundee” is atract of nine hundred acres taken
up by James Wells, for whom it was surveyed De-
cember 24, 1680. It adjoins Brecknock and * Little
Geneva.” In 1771, Richard Jackson was the owner
of one hundred and fifty acres. In 1783 the greater
part of this tract was in possession of the heirs of
James Gardner. In 1887, two hundred and nine
acres of this tract is in possession of the heirs of the
Rev. Ignatius T. Cooper. Other parts are owned by
Thomas Saxten, Thomus Downham, the heirs of
Walker Mifflin, the heirs of Thomas L. Madden, by

Philo A. Kent, Abram N. Brown, Thomas Jackson and
others.

WyoMiNG.—On this tract is located the thriving
village of Wyoming, which dates its existence from
the 1st of June, 1836, when the Deluware Railroad
and Adams Express Company opened theirrespective
offices for business, und appointed John I'. Jakes their
agent. At the time of Mr. Jukes’ taking | 0 -ession of
those ofticesthere weretwo dwelling-house which were
ovcupied by the owuner of the grist-mill located on the
oppo ite side of the stream ([saac’s Branch) in East
Dover Hundred, and by his miller. In the same year
Wm. P. Lindall built a store-house, and entered upon
the mercantile business, but in the year following he
sold out to John T. Jakes, who has continued the
business down to the present date.

John T. Jakes, merchant at Wyoming, Kent County,
Delaware, was born November 28, 1833, near Pearson’s

orner, Kent County. He is of French Huguenot
descent, the name originally being Jacques. His
first American ancestor was Henry Jacques, who emi-
grated from France and went to Virginia and settled.
Thomas W. Jakes, his futher, married Nancy, daugh-
ter of William Anderson, a farmer of Kent County.
At the time of this marriage she was the widow of
Robert Hargadine, who at hisdeath left two children,—
William A. now of the firm of Hargadine, McKittrick
& Co., importers and wholesale dealers in dry goods*
in St. Louis, Mo., where he emigrated before he was
of age, in the year 1842 (he has been eminently suc-
cesslul and amassed a large fortune, and is one of the
leading men of that city); and Julia Ann, widow of
Hon. Robert B. Wright, of Kent County, who served
one term in the Legislature of the State. Mrs. Jakes
was a noble Christian woman. She died July 17,
1863, aged sixty-nine. Thomas W. Jakes, her hus-
band, lived to the ripe old age of eighty-six years,
and died March 3, 1885. He was a man of sound
judgment, sterling iutegrity and noted for his honor
and excellent character, wa ‘never sued for deb during
his life, and never sued any person on his own
account. JohnT. Jakes, their only child, and thesub-
ject of this sketch, obtained his education at the com-
mon free schools in the vicinity of his early home; at
the age of seventeen he was taken from school and
entered the store of Lufi’ & Green at Camden, Dela-
ware, as clerk in December, 1849, and continued with
the firm until they closed business, when he went
into the general mercantile business in the town of
Camden with Wm. S. Prouse, under the firm-name of
Prouse & Jakes, and continued for two years. In
1856 he was appointed agent for the Delaware Rail-
road Company atthen West Camden (now Wyoming),
and for eleven years performed the duties of that
position with great acceptability to the company and
public, until he resigned in favor of N. B. Buckmas-
ter, the present agent In 1857 he embarked again
in the mercantile business at his present stand, which
is the second house built in the villaze of Wyoming
after the railroad was laid, since which time his busi-
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ness has steadily increased, having now an extensive
and lucrative business. He was one of the pioneers
of the new town, and assisted greatly in building it up.
He was the leading man to organize a Sunday-school
in the village, and was the leading man in building
and having the first Methodist- Episcopal Church So-
ciety organized there. He was also greatly instru-
mental in securing the establishment of a post-oftice,
and became its first postmaster, appointed January 6,
1866, and held the office continuously until August 10,
1885, a term of nineteen and a half years. He was
appointed agent of Adams Express Company when
the office was established at Wyoming in 1857, and
still holds that position. Mr. Jakes was one of the
founders of the First National Bank of Dover, Dela-
ware, was chosen a member of the first board of
directors in March, 1866,and has since held that posi-
tion until the present, and meets with the board every
Thursday. In 1869 he became connected with the
Surrey Land and Lumber Association, of Surrey
County, Va., was elected secretary and treasurer of
the company, and spent considerable time and means
during the succeeding two years in looking after his
interests in that State, having opened a large store
and blacksmith shop at Spring Grove, on one of the
tracts.

His father accompanied him to Virginia, and while
there was appointed postmaster, and served two
years as president judge of the Magistrate’s Court of
that county, and until his return to Delaware,

In 1868, Mr. Jakes was elected Grand Secretary of
the Siate of Delaware by the Independent Order of
Good Templars, which he filled with honor to himself
and the society. In 1870 he and his wife were elected
Grand Representatives to represent the Grand Lodge
of North America of that order at its session, held in
St. Louis, Mo., of that year, and were present.

He joined the Independent Order of Odd Fellows
in 1854, and has filled all the offices in the subordin-
ate lodge in which he was initiated—Amity, No. 20,
located in Camden, Delaware—and has filled most of
the offices in the Grand Lodge of the State, except
the chair of Grand Master. In 1879 he was elected
Grand Representative of the State to the Grand Lodge
of the United States, and represented the State for
four consecutive years—at Baltimore, first; the second
year (1880) at Toronto, Canada, where he was placed
upon the committee to revise the revision of the new
ritual adopted at that place and the name changed to
the Sovereign Grand Lodge ; in 1881 at Cincinnati, and
in 1382 at Baltimore. He was also present at the ses-
sion held in Providence,R. I., in 1883, and at Minnea-
polis, in 1884, he was appointed Grand Marshal by
the Grand Sire-elect Hon. Judge Garey, of Baltimore,
Maryland, and at the next annual session, held in Bal-
timore he served in his official capacity at the corner-
stone laying and unveiling of the Ridgley Monument
in that city in 1885. He also filled his place at the
annual session held in Boston in 1886, and in 1887
he was present at the session beld in Denver, Colo-
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rado, and was appointed Assistant Grand Messenger
to the Grand Body. In 1878 he was made a life
director of the American Bible Society and has been
treasurer of the Kent County Bible Societysince 1872.
He was elected treasurer of his lodge (I. O. O. F.) in
Camden, Delaware, January 1, 1875, which position
he still holds; was also elected treasurer of Dover
Encampment, No. 5, located at and meeting in the
same hall; was also elected receiver or treasurer of
Kent Lodge, No. 8, A. O. U. W., January 1, 1884,
located at Wyoming, Delaware. He connected him-
self with the Methodist Episcopal Church in 1867,
since which time he has been one of its trustees and
has been continued in an official capacity since its
dedication in 1865, and of which his wife is a member
and a hard worker for the interests of the church, being
at the head of several of the societies belonging
thereto. In politics Mr. Jakes is and always has been
an ardent Republican and a constant and devoted
advocate of the principles of that party, as well as
that of the Temperance Reform movement. He was
one of the few in Kent County who voted for Abra-
ham Lincoln for President in 1860, and earnestly
favored the prosecution of the war. He is also an
honorary memory of the Women's Christian Temper-
ance Unijon of his town, and has been since its
organization. At the election of President Hayes the
family represented three generations, his father, him-
self and his two sons all voting. On the 14th day of
February, 1854, Mr. Jakes was married to Mary B.
Townsend, daughter of Benjamin B. Townsend, of
Camden, Delaware. Theireldestson, William Harga-
dine Jakes, was admitted to partnership with his
father in 1879 in the general mercantile business,
and doing business as Jakes & Son. He was married
to Mollie E. Jackson, daughter of Thomas Jackson,
a farmer near Wyoming, Delaware. They have one
son, named John T., who was nursed by and knew
each of his great-vrandfathers before their deaths.
Dr. C. Russell Jakes, the second son, is a graduate of
Delaware College and the Medical Department of the
University of Pennsylvania, where he took a regular
allopathic courae and is practicing his profession suc-
cessfully. He was married to Miss Laura Ferris, of
New Castle County, in December, 1884, and in
August fullowing she died, only living eight and a
half months. Maggie T. Jakes, the only daughter,
is a graduate of Wyoming Institute and has since
been a successful teacher until the close of school in
December, 1887, when she resigned. Thomas W.
Jakes, the youngest son, is at home clerking in the
store of his father and brother, at Wyoming.

In 1860 the village, which had been partially laid
out by Dr. Isaac Jump, of Dover, was quite a respec-
table village. It is located three miles southwest of
Dover, and one mile west of Camden, and is bisected
by the Delaware railroad.

The village of Wyoming was known by the name
of “ West Camden ” from its inception down to the
year 1865, and sometimes as “ Camden Station,” on
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account of its being located for the convenience of the
people of Camden and the surrounding country.

Bume time in 1835 the Rev. John J. Pierce, of the
Wyoming Valley, Pa., carne to “ West Camden ' and
purchased the land from Dr. Isaac Jump 2nd others,
and laid it out in building lots, Through the exer-
tions of Messrs, Picree, Jakes andothers, the village re-
ceived quite a boom in the way of building, and many
persons from the Wyoming Valley, and from North
Murderkill and West Dover Hundreds, flocked to
West Camden, and engaged in business, During the
same year 4 meeting of the leading and most enter-
prising of the ¢itizens was called to take into consider-
ation the propricty of severing all comnection or
identity with the town of Camden, and out of com-
plaisance to Mr, Pierce, they agreed that it should be
called “ Wyoming,” after his native valley on the
North Branch of the S8usquehanna. During the same
year, in the midst of the peach season, John T. Jakes
started a suhscription list for the pnrpose of putting
up a temporary bnilding to be used for a Snoday-
school, which had not progressed far before the move-
ment develnped into a chnreh, C(Qut of the moneys
eollected was bueilt a plank church, but Dbefore jts
dedication the Rev. Mr. Hamersley, of Camden Cir-
cuit, organized the beard of trustees to receive the
edifice in the name of the Methodist Episenpal
Church. Upon the perfecting of this board of frus-
tees they issued the following notice:

" DEDICATION.
© Tue M. E. PLANK CHURCH, 0F WEST CAWDEN,

“ Loeated at Camden Station, will be dedicated fo the womhip of Al-
mighty God, on Sunday, 1he 12th inst.

" Rav, Andrew Menehip, of Philadelphiia ; Rtev. J. J. Pearce, late of
Wyoming Conference: Rev, Celelazer, of Philadelphia Canference; Tley,
A D, Davis, of Erio Conference, will efficiate.  Services to commene &
10 a'clock a.., aud continde at 3 and 7 o'clock poy.

“ Al are invited to attend, by the
“I'agron & TRUITEES

 Nov. 3, 1865.”

Present board of trusteea : John T. Jakes, Thomas
Jackson, Thomas Downoham, John Leager, Samnel
Conner, Wm. B, Wheatley, Wm. C. Longfellow, Wm_
A, Lewis, Geo. M. Crosmore. Officers : Samuel
Conner, president of board ; Thomas Dorenham,
secretary ; Thomas Jackson, treasurer,

This plank church answered all the purposes of a
church and Sunday-school for the people of Wyoming
till it became dilapidated, and necessitated the build-
ing of a new one. In 1883 the new structure was be-
guan, and dedicated in Beptember of the same vear,
In 1885, a parsonage for Wyoming Circuit—comnpris-
ing the Wyoming, the Willow Grove, the Union, near
Hazlettville, and Asbury near Pearson’s Corner
was finished late in the fall.

The list of pastors from the time of organization to
the present is here given :

Ttev. J. J. Pearee,....coccvneenne - f6F the balance of the year 1A
Rev, &, 10 D vensnmrsnnnesnneneren TR 0d TRGT
Kev. Julon I8 AL
Tiev. J. T. Tomyp Ih..

Jtey, Ciearze B Cunaway,..
Tlew, Jue, Trare. .
Jigw, 1. W, € MeJutin

v 186D wnrd 16870
e FET1 10 1572
......... 1873 and 1474
1475, 187G and 1877
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Ter, W, W. Redman...... 1878
Hev. A. W. Leighbonroe........... .... [, - i
Tiev, 5. 1o PIlENATD et e e e 1580 and 1881
Hev. A. T. Melvin......... 1882 and 1853
Tter, Win, A WITLEr. coeenrienining sssmennes o 18RS, 1585 and 1586
Tiav. Wm, BI. Green (the present pesdull.. ... e e 1887

Some time in the year 1868 a collegiate institute
wns organized here, under the name of * Wyoming
College,” and incorporated hy the Delaware Legisla-
ture, Febrnary 16, 1869, with a full corps of college
professors, with power to confer all the degrees inei-
dental to a regnlar collegiate conrse in learning, The
seminary was dedicated April 14, 1868, by Rev. A,
Wallace.

The nnmerous Baptists setiled in and around
Wyoming, having no place of worship nearer than
Dover, and sadly feeling the want of a church, entered
into negotiations for the purchase of Wyoming Col-
lege, which they accomplished in October, 1869,
through the efforts of the Rev. O. F. Flippo, who had
been sent into the State a8 an evapgelist. The building
possessed a chapel, which they used for church ser-
vices on Sunday, and was furnished for one hundred
pupils. In 1875 the institution received a new charter,
and the name was changed to “ Wyoming Institnte,”
Under the management of the Rev, Moses Heath,
prineipal, the institute was liherally patronized by the
people of Camden, Wyoming and the adjacent coun-
try. The Rev. Joseph Perry was the last principal,
who remained bnt a short time. The building is not
now used for educational purposes. In 1830 (Decem-
ber 18th), the Baptists of Wyoming were incorporated
nnder the name of ¥ The Wyoming Baptist Church,?
In 1881, nnder the ¢are of the Revs, James M. Hope
and Moses Heath, the Baptists purchased a lot of
ground of George Purris, of Dover, upon which they
erected a chnrch building in 1881, This lot was in
the town of Camden, and in consideratiom of the
erection of the church bnilding upon said lot, Geo.
Parris, the elder, in his will, provided that $300 per
annum should be paid to the said church for the
period of five years, The church organization is now
under the control of the Rev. Frank Howes.

*8t. John’s Reformed Church’ had no meeting-
house until 1874. In April, 1869, the Rev, Dr. G. B,
Russell, of Philadelphia, came to Wyoming and
preached for his congregation for more thap s year.
On July 18th of the same year a congregation was
arganized, the official act being effected by the Rev.
Dr. 8. R. Fisher, when twenty-two persens entered
into eovenant relations. The Rev. C. C. Russell was
the first pastor, who began his labors in the fall of
1870, and remained with them until his death, which
happened in about one year. For several years there
was no pastor. However, on the 9th of June, 1872,
the corner-stone for a meeting-lhouse was laid, and on
the 1¢%th of April, 1874, the house was dedicated by
the Rev. Dr. E. V. Gerhart, of Lancaster, Pennayl-
vania. Thesecnnd partor was the Rev. W. F. Lichliter,
Aungust, 1875, who resigned at the end of the year.
He was succeeded by the Rev. E. H, Dieffenbacher,
November, 1876, who continued with them until 1880,
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when he was succeeded by the Rev. Newton J. Miller
in June of that year who remained uutil June, 1882.
He was followed by S. F. Laury, who entered upon
his pastorate December 1, 1882, and remained with
them until March 1,1886,since which time the pasto-
rate has been vacant. They are supplied with religious
services from time to time by visiting ministers from
other congregations, principally from the State of
Pennsylvania.

In 1875, James S. Marsh, of Lewisburg, Pennsyl-
vania, and Jacob G. Brown, of “ Rising Sun,” formed
a partnership, and built a large evaporator for the
preservation of peaches and other fruits and vege-
tables. In 1880 the firm of Marsh & Brown was
dissolved, and the company reorganized under the
name of Brown, Hanson & Co. The company claim
to have the largest evaporating establishment in the
State, with the capacity of evaporating seventy-five
tons of peaches alone. In connection with it is also
4 canning establishment with a capacity of one mil-
lion cans per annum.

A post-office was not established here until Janu-
ary 12, 1866, when John T. Jakes was appointed
postmaster, which position he held until August 10,
1886.

In 1870 a new school district was formed from the
present outlying districts, and a school-house built
in the village, which accommodated the children until
1886, when the population had increased so rapidly
that a new school building became necessary. In that
year a new two-storied building was erected, and the
public school organized on the graded system, with
two efficient teachers and one hundred and twenty-
five scholars.

There are to-day three general stores, one drug-
store, one milliner, one butcher, two blacksmiths, two
wheelwrights, one dealer in lumber and lime, two coal-
dealers, one shoe-shop, one harness-maker, one nur-
seryman and two physicians.

There are two secret societies—'‘ The Ancient Order
of United Workmen, Kent Iodge, No. 8 instituted
in 1883, with twenty-two members; and the Grand
Army of the Republic, General Daniel Woodall Post,
No. 11, instituted in March, 1884, with a membership
of twenty-eight persons.

Beside the extensive cannery of Brown, Hanson
& Co., there are two other small evaporators, that do
quite an active business in seasons when peuches
are plenty and cheap.

Wyoming was incorporated as a town March 20,
1869, and agzin incorporated at the 1888 session of
the General Assembly. George M. Fisher has been
town clerk up to the present year, when he was suc-
ceeded by Carrol S. Fisher.

TOWN TREASURERS.,
Hon. C. P. Romsdell........... 1869
N. B Buckmaster......
8. L. Richards..
C. M. Carey
John T. Jakes........
N. B. Buckmuster....

Robert M. Hewes...
Jamaes R. George..
Caleb Jacksou

ASSESSORS.

William McGonigal...
S. R. Mevedith

S. W Powell........ccove0e0... 1872-73
William Broadway...........1874-756
E. B. Baker

George Ayers..
Willium Broad way...
John H. Jeukins.
A. E. Wetzel....
A. A. Lawrence..

COLLECTOMNS.
Daniel George....

Robert M. Hewes.
James R. George.

Caleb Jackson ...1882-87

TOWN COMMIBSIONERS.
William P. Lindale....
W. W. Meredith.
John T. Jakes....

rilliam P. Lindale.
W. W. Meredith....
William T. Alrich...
William P. Lindale.
M. H. Gross.
Johu Hale..
George M. Crossmore.

Abel Hartson....
William P. Lindale.
E. B. Baker.........
William K. Atkins.
Milo H. Gross.....
George M. Crossmore. .
Floyd C. Ramedell...............

G. Nickerszon.
W. L. Hubburd..
William K. Atkius...
G. Nickerson
Lewis Raymond...
John Hale
Elwood Jenkins
M. H. Grose

Elwood Jenking
John Hale
H. B. Hopkins.
Eiwood Jenkins
John Hale...
William T. Alich.
Elwood Jenkins..
John Hunp...
Wiiliam T. Alrich.
Elwood Jenkins....
John Hunn, Jr...
James Montague............... ...1881
Culeb Jacltson. .

Jonas Laundis
James Montagua.
Caleb Jackson.
Jonas Landis ..
Jumes Montague.
Caleb Jackson....
Dr. T. C. Frane....
James Muntague....
James Montague.
Caleb Jackson
John Leager
James Montague..
Caleb Jackson....
Carrol 8. Fisher...
D. Miffiin......
Caleb Jacksou.. .-
E, Hubbard............... PR 1887

West of “ Dundee,” and south of Isaac’s Branch, is
a small tract of land containing one hundred and
seventy-six acres, taken up by George Morgan under
a warrant bearing date March 22, 1738, called “ Mor-
gan’s Chance,” and now in the possessiun of William
R. Allaband.

To the west and southwest of ‘“ Morgan’s Chance”
lies a tract of six hundred acres, called ‘ Barnes’
Chance,’ taken up by Lewis Johnson under a warrant
issued for John Barnes April 21, 1682. It is now
mainly owned by the heirs of James Kersey, by the
heirs of Edgar J. Kinney and by Kent County. Oa
this tract is located the ‘ Alms-House” of Kent
County.

On the same land is the ancient grist mill seat,
called by the name of the ¢ Allaband Mill,”” which
was known as a mill-seat prior to 1783. In 1791 part
of this tract is described as being upon * School-
House Branch,” where the Forest Landing road
crosses, and is part of Mill Pond, and contained in
the aggregate about two hundred and twenty acres.

On the southwest of “Dundee,” and southeast of
“Morgan's Chance"” and “ Barnes' Chance,” lies the
tract called “ Howell's Lott,” taken up under warrant
to James Wells, dated December 21, 1681, and sur-
veyed to John Howell November 25 and 27, 1683,
containing one thousand acres, now owned in part by
Daniel L. McBride, by Willard A. Gray, by Dr.
James Avery Draper, by John H. Berry, by ——
Wells, late of Asa Griffith, and ten acres in the



1140

eastern coroer of the whole tract hy the heirs of Rev.
I. T. Cooper.

Adjoining “ Huweli’s Lott ” and “ Dundee,” on the
gouth, is located “Longacre,” containing one thou-
sand acres, taken up by Nicholas Bartlett nnder war-
rant from conrt of Kent County, dated the 20th 4 mo.,
16882, In 1742 seven hundred and forty-five acres
of this tract were in the possession of Andrew Cald-
well. TLis ancient tract is now in possession of the
heirs of Rev. I. T. Cooper, L. E. Neilson, John B.
Cleaver, heirs of Samuel B. Cooper, Rev. Joseph E.
Waugh, Mrs. G. 1. Du Pont, land late of &.J. Everett,
of Harvey Soper, of W, D, McGloghlan, and of 8. M.
Thomas.

Little Geueva is a tract of four honndred acres,
taken np by Alexander Humphreys, and surveyed
for him March 4, 1680, It adjoing “ Dundee™ and
‘“Brecknock,” on the sonth of them, and *“ Great
Geneva™ on its southwest boundary, and lies on hoth
sides of the Upper King’s Road, just outside of the
town of Camden, leading toward Canterbury, and ex-
tends to the road leading from Camden to Willow
Grove. In 1745 two hnndred and four acres, lying
between the Willow Grove and Canterbury roads,
were in the possession of Andrew Purdon. This part
is now owned by William K. Evans, William P. Lin-
dale and Matthias Jerman., The part lying east of
the Canterbury road was owned in 1783 by Warner
Mifflin, George Truitt and others. This part is now
chiefly owned by Levi 8. Prond and the assignee of
Samuel J. Everett.

Upon this tract is the colored people’s chureh,
called the “ Star of the East,” which was deseribed
in conpection with “ Brecknock.” There is a hamlet
of colored people, who bave bonght small parcels and
built npon them.

On the southeast side of Tidbury Branch and south-
west of the {ract “ Tidbury ” lies a tract of land con-
taining four hundred and sixty-five acres, resurveyed
Auwugust 15, 1733, for Kzekiel, Daniel and Thomas
Nock, the sons of Thomas, decessed. This tract re-
mained in possessiou of the Nocks as late as 1783,
Some time abont 1760 Ezekiel Nock built a grist-mill
there, and left his property to his sons, of whom
Thomas remained oo the homestead.

About the year 1783, or a little later, the mill
property passed into the possession of Danie! Mifflin,
who left it to Lig two sons, Daniel and Samuel. The
mill was known as “Nock’s MIill” and “ MifAlin’s
Mill.” Bome time about 1852 the property passed
into the possession of James Greeu, now decensed.
William B, Nock, druggist, of Camden, is the snle
survivor bearing the name of the Nock family.

West of the Nock tract, on the opposite side of
Tidbury, is a tract called * Gainsborongh,” compris-
ing four hundred and forty-five acres, surveyed for
John Nowell December 16, 1680.

West of “ Gainsborough 7 and south of “Little
Geneva” is a tract called ““ Grigg's Purchase,” taken
up under a warrant of December 21, 1681, containing
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one thonsand acres. It lies on and adjoing Tidbory
stream on the north, and is on both sides of the Up-
per King’s Road. [Ft was originally surveyed for
Alexander Humphreys, but is how jn posscssion of
Henry C. Cooper, George Gibbs, John Evans, J. B.
Staymuaker and others,

Sonth of “Grigg’s Puorchasze,” and on the south
side of Tidbury, is the tract “ Tiocnllever,”” taken up
under a warrant dated August 17, 1682, by Robert
Betts and John King, and contained twelve hundred
acres. It is now chiefly owned by Samuel W. Derby,
Themas B. Coursey, heirs of Mrs. Powell, B, F. Ab-
bott, heirs of Dr. T. T. Cooper and others. The land
late of James L. Dyer and of William T. Maloney
was also of this track,

On this tract, oo the Upper King's Road from Can-
terbury to Cemnden, is sitnated & grist-mill. It was
beqneathed by Mary Caldwell to her son, Joho Cald-
well, for a grist-mill seat October 15, 1786, and a mill
was soon after erected, The grist-mill is now owued
by Thomas B, Conrscy.

Sonth of “ Longacre” and southeast of *Grigg's
Purchase 7 and ‘“Tiocullever” is & large tract of land
called * Rhodes’ Forest,” containing lwo thousand
acres. It was taken up by John Rliedes, of Where-
kill Conunty (Snssex), on warrant from thaé court
November 28, 1679, It was inherited hy his S0y
John Rhodes, whe, May 8, 1725, sold it to Andrew
Caldwell, of Kent County, and took in excbange
therefor parts of tracts of * Bartlett’s Lott” and ad-
jacent tracts, lying townrds the mouths of St Jones’
and Murderkill Creeks. This tract, on account of
the change effected, was called hy Caldwell * The
Exchange,” by which name in subsequent deeds it is
generally known. It is deseribed 23 being on the
west side of Tidbury Branch, heginning at the mouth
of a small run that falls into the branch a little above
an Indian path (Camden and Willow Grove road at
Red House Dranch) that leads from Jopes® Creek to
Clhoptank. It extended from “Tudian Path,” west
by sonth nearly three iniles, and southeast by south
nearly two miles, aud thence in a northerly direction
about three miles, to the forks of Tidbury, aud up
Tidbury to beginning,

The Caldwells owned other large tracts, In 1746,
Andrew Caldwell, Jv.,, owned seven hundred and
forty-five acres of “Longacre,” a tract of two hun-
dred end eight-seven gcres, called '* Quiet Entry,” gitu-
sted south of the eastern part of Exchange, aud partly
porth of * Hudson’s Lott,” and a tract of ninety
acres called ““ Caldwell's Range,” west of the Ex-
change. Besides these, he owned other large tracts
in different parts of the county.

The tract ** Quiet Entry,” three hundred and four
acres, passed inlo the possession of Christopher
Green, in 1650. In iater years it passed to Robert
Catlin.

Upon this tract, one mile north of Canterbury,
was located a meeting-house by the Methodista.
May 16, 1781, Christopher Greeu conveyed one acre
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business was located nearby on the site of the
present Wyoming Mill on the east side of
Isaac’s Branch. It was the first gristmill on this
branch and was constructed by John Clayton
as a gift to his son, John Clayton, Jr., in 1738.
Later owners included James Clayton, grand-
father of Senator John M. Clayton, Dr. Joshua
Clayton, early Governor of Delaware, Judge
Fisher and William P. Lindale.

After the railroad was constructed, the
place grew rapidly. John T. Jakes was the first
agent for the railroad and for the Adams
Express Company. Families who built homes or
established businesses included the Jenkins,
Emersons, Jacksons, Hunns, Fishers, Browns
and Lindales. John Hunn became a Governor of
Delaware in 1900.

“Wyoming is a new, enterprising, plucky
little place. full of hope and self-reliance, and
is bound to be something because its people
think they can, and are determined to be,"
wrote the editor of a state directoryin 1868. He
reported that the houses were so fresh and
new that theylooked as if they had come out of
a New England bandbox. The inhabitants were
interested in education, religion and tem-
perance.

In 1865 the Rev. John J. Pierce of the
Wyoming Valley of Pennsylvania arrived. He
laid out building lots, and in his honor the
name was changed to Wyoming. The village
was incorporated in 1869.

About this time the Methodists built a
plank church, and the Baptists organized,
though they did not erect an edifice until 1881.
The first school house was erected in 1870.
(From about 1868 to 1888 the Baptists operated
Wyoming College, but it was not a financial
success).

In 1875 James S. Marsh of Lewisburg,
Pennsylvania, and Jacob G. Brown of Rising
Sun built a fruit evaporator, the largest in the
state with a capacity of 76 tons of peaches per
year. Through subsequent mergers and
changes in the twentieth century the plant
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®
became Libby, McNeil and Libby.

Wyoming was a peach center of the state
in the 1880s, and long lines of wagons were
drawn up waiting for their turn at the loading
station of the railroad. Shade trees were
planted along Railroad Avenue for the benefit
of the drivers and horses.

Today it is a quiet residential town, most
of whose inhabitants work in Dover.

Railway Station at Wyoming in 1880

-
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HISTORICAL MARKER DEDICATED: A Delaware
Public Archives historical marker for the town of
Wyoming was dedicated with a small ceremony
Sunday at the former train station. From left are
State Rep. Gerald Buckworth (R-34th), Town
Counciiman Donald Bilow, Mayor Jim Brown, and
Hans Reigle, a local citizen who spurred the effort
to have a historical marker placed. The marker tells

how Wyoming began as West Camden, a communi-
ty that grew up around the train station that came
with the building of the railroad in 1856. The citi-
zens, however, decided they wanted an identity
separate from Camden and changed the name to
Wyoming, the effort culminating in the town being
allowed to incorporate by the General Assembly in
1869. Photo by Betsy Gutstafson.
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